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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Kanpur Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Kanpur Fertilizers &
Chemicals Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as al 31st March,
2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of changes in equity and Statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31st March 2024, and notes 10 the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {(Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its profit,
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

| Sr. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
No.
|

1. | Subsidy recognized as revenue and | Qur procedures included the
assessment of recovery of the amount due | following:
on account of Subsidy




During the FY 2023-24,
company recognized the total
subsidy of Rs. 2366.90 crores on
sale of Urea, Natural Gas and
Freight. Accuracy of revenue
may deviate significantly
because revision in the notified
rates and change in final
estimates w.r.t escalation/de-
escalation of cost.

The subsidy due from
Government of India at the end of
FY 2023-24 stood at Rs, 260.24
crores. During the FY 2023-24,
the company received Rs.
2639.68 crores as subsidy on
account of urea, Freight and CGas.
Given the size of amount of
subsidy, the evaluation of fair
value of subsidy receivable and
its recovery involves assessment

of the management in terms of |

time frame of recovery from
FICC and  thus  requires
significant audit attentions and
forms a Key Audit Matter

ii.

it

Understood and evaluated
the design and tested the
operating effectivencss of
controls as established by
management in recognition
of subsidy revenue and
assessment of the
recoverability of subsidy
receivables.

Reviewed the Company’s
Accounting policies for
recognition of Subsidy on
Urea as mentioned under
“Note No. 2 Statement of
Significant Accounting
policies’ in conformity with
the provision of Ind AS on
Government Grants.
Assessment of the basis of
Judgements that
management has made in
relation to the
notifications/policies
including past precedence
and subsequent evidence, as
applicable.

. Reviewed the relevant

notifications/policies issued
by various authorities to
ascertain the
appropriateness of the
recognition of subsidy
revenue and adjusiments to
subsidy receivables already
recognized pursuant to
changes in subsidy rates,
We considered the relevant
notifications/policies issued
by various authorities to
ascertain the
appropriateness of the
recognition of subsidy
revenue and adjustments to




‘ subsidy receivables already |
recognized pursuant to
| changes in subsidy
rates/escalation or de-
escalation in subsidy rates.
vi. Reviewed and tested the
aging of the related
receivables and assessed the
‘ information used by the
. management (0 determine
J the recoverability of subsidy
f receivable by considering
' historical collection trends and
the level of credit loss charged
overtime,

Information Other than the Standalone financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

QOur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

[f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate
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implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone {inancial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalene financial
statements as a whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
1o issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone {inancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 10
continue as 4 going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




. Fvaluate the overall presentation, struetore and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

B) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of changes in equity
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31*
March, 2024 aken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315 March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company with reference to these Ind AS standalone financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

£) Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during




V.

VI,

h)

the year in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Act

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

Ls:

i,

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS standalone financial statements. - Refer Note 39 10 the
Ind AS standalone financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
olher person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause {i) and (ii) of Rule I 1{e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for (he financial year




ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we
did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.
As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from April I, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {(Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024,

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {the “Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B> a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Sharma Vats & Associates
Chartered Accountants ‘
Firm Registration No. 031484 Nsye”

{CA Manoj Kum%
Partner

M.NOQ. 527922
Date- 27/04/2024
Place- NEW DELHI
UDIN-24527922BKGEHA1600




ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kanpur Fertilizers
& Chemicals Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal controf stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reperting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perforin the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procegdures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance witly generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

[n our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Sharma Vats & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Partner

M.NO. 527922
Date- 27/04/2024
Place- NEW DLELHI
UDIN-24527922BKGIHAL600




ANNEXURE “B” referred to in paragraph 2 of our report of even date to the members
of Kanpur Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited on the accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31st March 2024,

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full pariculars, including
quaatitative details and situation of Intangible Assets.

(b)A substantial portion of the Property, Plam and Equipment have been physically verified
by the management during the year and 1o the best of cur knowledge and information given
to us, no material discrepancies were identificd on such verification.

(¢) According 10 the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the titie deeds of immovable Properties are
deemed held in the name of company in terims of Para 4 and Para 5, Para Ul of Annexure A
of approved Scheme of BIFR.

Description | Gross Asset held | Whether | Period Reason for not
of property carrying in name of | held in | during being held in
value name of | which it was | name of
(Rs. In promoter, not held in | company
|I Lakhs) director or | namec of the
| their Company
| relative  or
employee
| Land -
Parbati
Bagla Road,
Kanpur . Pursuant  to
Land - 56 Transfer  of
cantonment, Duncans | No w.e.f Land in terms
Kanpur 24,343.87 | industries 24.01.2012 | of Para 4 and
Road, Ltd. Para 5, Para I!
Kanpur ' of  Anncxure
Land - Cee A of approved
Kay CEstate - Scheme  of
Udyog Vihar | BIFR  dated .
Industrial 16.01.2012
Area, Panki,
Kanpur |

(d) The Company has not revalued its properties, plant and equipment; therefore, the Clause
3(i)(d) is not applicable.
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(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

A)

B8)

)
D)
E)
£)

(e) As informed, the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against
the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, therefore the Clause 3(i)(e) is not
applicable.

(a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limirs in excess of 2 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on 1he
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3{ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has made investments in, Companies and not granted unsecured leans to
other parties, during the year, in respect of which:

The Company has not provided loans and advances in the nature of loan and not stood
guarantee or not provided security to any other entity during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(1it){A) is not applicable

In our epinion, the investments made during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

Reporting under clause 3(in){(C) is not applicable.
Reporting under clause 3(111){D} is not applicable.

Reporting under clause 3(iii)}(E) is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(i11)(f) is not applicable

The Company has not made investments in Firms and Limited Liability Parinerships during
the year. Further the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections |86 of the

Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, invesiments made and guarantees and
securities provided, as applicable. The Company has not granted any loans as per Sections
[85. Therefore, the same is not applicable for the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Therefore, reporting under
clause (v) of CARO is not applicable 1o the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148()) of the companies Act 2013, We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the company pursuant to the companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules
2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate and
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

complete. The cost audit report for the FY 2023-24 was yet to be concluded at the time of
submission of our report.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
depositedas on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of the Nature of dues Amount of Assessment Forum where
Statute Demand Year dispute is
(Rs. in Lakhs) pending
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 431 2018-19 Assessing Officer
1961
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 5.38 2017-18 NFAC#
1961
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 0.91 2023-24 Assessing Officer
1961
CGST Act, Bihar | GST and Interest | 115.73 2019-20 ## State Bench of
GST Act and Goods and
IGST Act Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal
CGST Act, Bihar | GST and Interest | 183.19 2017-18 ##State Bench of
GST Act and Goods and
IGST Act Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal

#NFAC stands for National Faceless Assessment Centre

## The Appeals are yet to be filed before State Bench of Goods and Service Tax
Appellate

Tribunal as and when they will constitute as per the reference Notification No.
S.0.4073(E)

dated 14th September,2023. As per pre deposit condition 20% of outstanding demand

has been deposited and right to appeal before Appellate Tribunal has been reserved.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks at the end of
the year.




(x)

(x3)

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

{b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority at the end of the year.

(¢) The Company has applied term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

{d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(&) On an overall examination of the standalone financial siatements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or 10 meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(ixXf) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reposting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable.

(b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully ot partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b} of the Order is not applicable.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the standalone financial statements and as per the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or any fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reporied during the course of
our audit.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xii} of the Order are not applicable 1o the Company.

Based on information and explanations given to us by the managemeni, all transactions
with the related pariies are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(&) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business;

(b} We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued 1o the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and exient of our
audit procedures,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has nof entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or person connected with him
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which is covered by Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
is not required to be registered under section 45 [A of the Reserve Bank of [ndia Act, 1934
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{(xvi) of the Order are not applicable 1o the
Company.

(xvii} The company has not incurred cash loss during the current year as weli as in the
immediately preceding financial year,

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncenainty exists as on
the date of the audit repont indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{xx)  a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) on other
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the
said Act, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the
year,

b) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx}b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Sharma Vats & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 0314
k

(CA Manoj KW {r,', ! Mew Delli
Partner 8 [\ “(,/ : g
M.NO. 527922 Zarod heoS
Date- 27/04/2024 =
Piace- NEW DELHI

UDIN-24527922BKGEHA1600




Funpur Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited
Balance Sheet as on 31st March,2024
CiiN . U24233UP20101PLC0O40828

{ Rs. In Lacs]

Particulars Note No As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023
Asgsets
Non Current Assets
Properiy, Plant and Equipment 4 62,027 65,006
Capual Wark in Progress 4.1 3,196 196
Financial Assets
Investments 5 4,741 -
Olher Financial Assels 6] 1,974 2,518
Other Non Current Assels 7 718 728
72,656 68,448
Current Assets
Inventories 8 10,526 13,449
Financial Assets
Investments g 1,047 -
Trade Receivable 10 28,800 42,560
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 11 6,682 13,045
Bank Balance other than above 12 14,012 10,442
Other Financial Assets 13 32,346 18,075
Other Current Assels 14 9,055 5,250
93,377 99,821
166,033 168,269
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 15 35,246 35,246
Other Equity 16 48,002 46,508
83,248 81,754
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowing - -
Other Financial Liabilities 17 1,662 1,485
Provisions 18 3432 291
Deferred Tax Lialulities [Net) 19 2,038 734
4,042 2,510
Cutrent Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables 20
Total ouistanding dues of other than MSME 69,940 70,312
Total ocutstanding dues of MSME 373 397
Other Financial Liabilities 21 6,708 9,881
Other Current Liabilities 22 857 2,802
Provisions 23 77 79
Current Tax Liabilities(Net) 24 788 534
78,743 84,005
Total 166,033 168,269
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies &
Notes to the Financial Statements "1" to 39"

For Sharma Vats & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Regtstration No.
\_\

Partner
M. No. 527922

Place: New Delhi
Dated : 27th April 2024

{Ritu Gupta)

Company Secretary

ACS-20334

For and on behalf of the Board

y
v Y

nd Sharma)
t & CFO

(Ramesh
Jt. Pr

-y

(Manoj Gaur)
Chairman

e A
M;G{_/énri -

_—dt7MD & CEQ
DIN: 00112520



Kunpur Ferlilizeas & Chemicals Limited

Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2024

| Rs. in Lags)

Particulars

Note No

Year Ended 31.03.2024

Year Ended 31.03.2023

[Audited) [Audited)
Revenue From Operations 25 294 885 319,841
Other lncome 26 2,155 524
Totul Income 297,040 320,365
Expenses
Cost of Malerials Consumed 27 211,276 244,139
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 28 41,539 4,327
Changes 1n Inventories of Finished Goods
& Worl-in-Progress 29 310 {3,953
Employce Benefits Expense 30 5903 4,450
Mnance costs k3 2,480 6,779
Depreciation and amortization Expense 32 7,320 7,225
Olher expenses 33 061,260 53,318
Totul Expenses 293,492 316,285
Prolit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 3,548 4,080
Exceptional llems [Net) 34 .
Prolit Bafore Tax 3,548 4,080
Tax Expense:
1) Current Tax 787 1,034
{2) Tax Paid for AY, 2023-24 19 -
{3) Excess MAT credit booked in earlier
ycar, now reversed 55
{4) Mat Credit 2,517 -
{5 Deferred Tax {1,183 1,363
Total Tax Expenses 2,195 2,397
Profit /|Loss) for the Perlod 1,353 1,682
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be Reclasslfied to
Profit or Loss
A. (i) Re-measurement gainsf (losses) on 23 14
defined benefit plans (net)
{ii] Income Tax (8 {5)
B. (il Re~-measurement gains/ [losses) on 195 R
Investments (net)
{ii} Income Tax {68}
Total Other Comprehensive Income 142 9
Total Comprehenslve Income for the 1,495 1,691
Period
Pald Up Equity Share Capital [Rs, In Cr)) 352 352
Face Value per share 10 10
Earnlngs per Equity Share
{1) Basic (Rs.) 0.42 0.48
{2) Diluted (Rs.} 0.92 048
Summary of Bignificant Accounting Policles &
Notes to the Financial Statements "1" 1o "39"

For Sharma Vats & Assocly

Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 031 486N

(Mano] Kughar Vats)
Partper’
M. No. 527922

Placa: New Delhi
Dated : 27th Aprll 2024

{Ritu Gupta)
Company Secretary
ACS.20334

For and on behalf of the Board

(Algk Gaur)—
—Jt. MD & CEO

DIN: 00112520



Kanpur Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited
Cash Flow Statemuoent For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024

[ Rs. In Lacs]

Cash Flow Statement 2022-23
A Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Profit Foi the Year 3,548 4,079

Adiustmenis For;

- Exceptional ltems [Net) - f48)

- Depreciation 7,320 7,225
Interest and Finance Charges 2,480 6,779

- Bundry creditors written off (536) -
Profit on sale of ixed assets (79) -
Interest Income on Fixed Deposits (1,420] (318)

- Other adjustments 161 -

Operating Profit Belore Working Capital Changes 11,474 17,717

Adjustments lor : -

- (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (78) {4,612)
(increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 13,752 35,712
{Increasc) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets 4451 (3.231)

- (lncrease) / Decrease in Other Current Assets {3,806} 263

- Increase / {NDecrease) in Trade Payables (202] 13,2449

- Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities i1,945) 1,950

- Increase / [{Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities and Provision {2,728) {8,527]

- Change in Other Assets 10 [102)

Cash Generated From QOperations 12,026 52,414

- Income Tax Refund/ {Paid} {534) {911

Net Cash Flow Generated From Qperating Activities 11,492 52,323

B Cash Flow From Investing Actlvities - -

- Additions To PPE And Intangible Assets {8,651} {(5,163)

- Proceeds From Sale/ Disposal O( Property, Planl And Equipment 1,388 138

- Interest Received 1,341 316

- Jovestment In Fixed Deposit (3,665) {1G,G95)

- Investment In Equity Instruments {5.376) -

- lnvestment In Gold Bonds {412) .

Net Cash Flows [Used In) Investing Actlvities {15,375 (14,754)

C Cash Flow From Financing Activities -
Preceeds/{Repayments) of Share Capital - -
Proceeds/{Repayments} of Long Term Borrowings - (13,976}
{Repayments Of) / Proceeds From Short Term Borrowings (Net) - (5,510)
[uterest And Finance Charges Paid (2,480 {10,498)

Net Cash Flows (Used 1n)/ Generated From Financing Activities [2,480] {29,984

Net Change In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 6,303) 7,580

Cash And Cash Equivalents- Opcning Balance 13,045 5,459

Cash And Cash Equivalents- Closing Balance 6,682 13,045

Notes To Cash Flow Statement:

Cash And Cash Equivalents Include :

Cash on Hand 2 2
Balances with Banks 6,680 13,043
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Year
|IRefer Note No 11] 6,682 13,045

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies &
Notes to the Financial Statements "1" to “39"

For Sharma Vats & Assoclates
Chartered Accountan
Registration No. 2314 N

Partner -
M. No. 527922

Place: New Delhi (Ritu Gupta)
Dated : 27th April 2024
ACS-20334

For and on behalf of the Board

Jt. Presjdent & CFO

Company Secretary

o

{Mano] Gaur)

D & CEQ
: 00112520
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KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

Note No."1" Nature of Operations

The Company was formed with one of its objectives to undertake the business in manufacturing,
selling and trading of fertilizers and related activities. The Company is subsidiary of Jaypee Uttar
Bharat Vikas Private Limited (JUBVPL).

The Company has 7,22,700 MT / Per Annum Urea manufacturing plant on approximately 243
Acres of land at Panki Industrial Area, Kanpur, U.P.

Note No."2" Statement of compliance

These Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to
time.

Note No."3" Basis of preparation of financial statements

A. The Company has adopted accounting policies that comply with Indian Accounting standards
(IND AS or Ind AS) notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 16 February
2015 under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013. Accounting policies have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. The financial statements
referred hereinafter have been prepared in accordance with the requirements and instructions of
Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013, amended from time to time applicable to companies to
whom IND AS applies read with the IND AS’s.

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments and defined benefit plans which are measured at fair value or
amortized cost at the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities have been classified as
current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle.

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee (7) which is the
functional currency of the Company. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are retranslated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange
gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in
foreign currencies are not retranslated.

The significant accounting policies used in preparation of the standalone financial statements
have been discussed in the respective notes.




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

B. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these standalone financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of
contingent liakilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are
affected.

The Company uses the following critical accounting estimates in preparation of its financial
statements:

a. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost [i.e., cost of acquisition or construction inclusive
of freight, erection and commissioning charges, non-refundable duties and taxes, expenditure
during construction period, borrowing costs (in case of a qualifying asset) up to the date of
acquisition/ installation], net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected
cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective
asset when the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Assets Useful Lives .
Building 60 Years |
Plant and Machinery 8-25 years

Vehicle 8 - 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Furniture and fittings 10 years




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

Individual assets acguired for Rs, 5000/- or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized.

b. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost which comprise
purchase price {including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates) and any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended
use. An intangible assets acquired in a business combination is recognized at fair value at the date
of acquisition. After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
Amortisation is recognized on a straight line basis over their estimated usefui life. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic henefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Computer Software is amortized over a period of 3 years.

The Goodwiil arising on Shares issued to DIL sharehelders in pursuant to Demerger Scheme dated
16.01.2012 of Hon'ble BIFR is being amortized equally over the period of five years.

¢. Inventories

inventories of raw material, finished goods, work in progress / stock in process, traded goods and
stores & spares are valued at lower of cost or net releasable value. Cost is determined on
weighted average basis. Cost comprises of purchase & other costs incurred in bringing them to
their present location & condition.

Catalyst is valued at depreciated cost on the basis of amortization over their estimated useful
lives for five years as technically assessed.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

d. Revenue Recognltion

i). Sale of Goods

1.The company manufactures urea and the price of the same is regulated by Government of India
(GOI). The company sells urea to the Authorized dealers/agents at the subsidized rate of Rs. 4974
per ton and receives the subsidy from the GOl at the notified price in force.

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2017, notifying Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’. The Standard is applicable to the Company with effect from 1st April, 2018. {ind AS
115 supersede the current revenue recognition standard Ind AS 18 Revenue & Ind AS 11
Construction Contracts. Prior to 1st April, 2018, the company was recognizing revenue based on

Ind AS 18).

Revenue from Contracts with Customers Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model {5
steps model) for entities to use in accounting for reyepue arising from contracts with customers.
% £




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

« Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

* Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

» Step 3: Determine the transaction price

» Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
» Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognizes revenue when {or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control” of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The
transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account
of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract.

ind AS 115 has no significant impact on the basis of recognition of revenue as under Ind AS 18
also, the above steps were compiled within the recognition of revenue with regard to sales of
Urea to the Authorized dealers/agents. The company deals with the authorized agents only and
has entered individual contract with them, meets the performance obligation when the urea
reaches the dealer, sells at the government regulated price and recognizes the revenue on
satisfying the said performance obligation.

2. Subsidy from Urea is recognized in sales / income on the bills generated through Integrated
Fertilizers Monitoring System (IFMS) of GOt on accrual basis in profit & loss accounts in
accordance with Ind AS 20.

Subsidy on Urea including freight has been accounted on the basis of notified concession prices as
under:

i. the New Pricing Scheme — Stage lll and New Investment Policy 2008 for the period from
April 1, 2015 to May 31, 2015;

ii. New Urea Policy 2015 from June 1, 2015 cnwards; and
iii. Uniform Freight Policy

Price and Freight subsidy is measured based on principle/notifications received from Fertilizer
Industry Coordination Committee (FICC} an office of Government of India which regulates such
subsidy and the bills are raised based on such notifications. Escalation/De-escalation in notified




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

rates is estimated taking intc account the effect of guidelines, policies, instructions and
clarifications given by the Government. The difference, if any based on final notification received
is treated as current year income or expenditure and the effect of change in estimate, if material,
is disclosed separately.

Subsidy on Phosphatic and Potassic (P&K) fertilizers is recognized as per concession rates notified
by the Government of India in accordance with Nutrient Based Subsidy Policy from time to time
and Freight subsidy has been accounted for in line with the policy.

Subsidy on City Compost is recognized based on rates, as notified by the Government of India.
ii). Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate (EIR) applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

iii). Insurance Claims

Claims receivable on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Group is reasonably
certain of their ultimate collection.

e. Foreign Currency Transaction

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period-

i. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date.

ii. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

iii. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the
period or in previous financial statements are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise,




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

f. Retirement and other employee benefits
i}. Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit plans such as provident fund are recognized as an expense.

For retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried cut at the end of each annual reporting
period.

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

»>  Service cost {including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

»  Net interest expense or income; and

»  Re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the
line item ‘Employee Benefits Expense'. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past
service costs.

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling {if applicable) and the return on plan assets {excluding net interest), is refiected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss,

Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculaticon is
limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

ii). Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. These benefits include
bonus/incentives and compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months

after the end of the period in which the employger the related service.




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the reiated service,

Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

g. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
h. Lease

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ing
AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant
judgment in assessing the lease term {including anticipated renewals} and the applicable discount
rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with
both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it
considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease.
The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or
a finance lease. The Company recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognized
over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s
net investment in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its
interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classifi(_:ation of a sub-




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to which the Company applies the exemption
described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-fease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115
Revenue from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 leases, and
other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance
sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019 and
had no lease arrangement to be recognised retrospectively or by modified approach with the
cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard and thus Ind AS 116 application has no major
impact Refer note 2(f) — Significant accounting policies —~ Leases in the Annual report of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2019, for the policy as per Ind AS 17.

Company as a lessee

Operating leases

For transition, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases
which are expiring within 12 months from the date of transition by class of asset and leases for
which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis. The Company has also used
the practical expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously
classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17,

The Company has land on lease for the period of 999 years, and hence, is treated as finance lcase.

i. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is
computed by dividing adjusted net profit after tax by the aggregate of weighted average number
of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares during the year.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease earning per share from continuing operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are
deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

j- Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

o
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). Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
current tax is calculated using applicable tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted upto the end of the reporting period.

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accorgance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the
respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates.

The Company uses estimates and judgments based on the relevant rulings in the areas of
allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances which is exercised while determining
the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgment to reassess the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

ii}). Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax is recognized
on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognized to the extent that it is prebable that there be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

da?
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In the case of unused tax losses probability is evaluated considering factors like existence of
sufficient taxable temporary differences, convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit
will be available. At the end of each reporting period, the Company reassesses unrecognized
deferred tax assets and, the Company recognizes a previously unrecognized Deferred Tax Asset to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the Deferred Tax Asset
to be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liahility is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as
current tax. The Company recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period, i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which
the Company recognises MAT credit as an asset in the said asset is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss as disclosed as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’. The Company reviews the
‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the
Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified
period,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable Company and the same taxation authority.

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination,
the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.
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k. Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication based on internal/ external
factors that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset {or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

[. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows {when the effect of the time value of moneyisimaterial).
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provisions.
An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract.

m. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

n. Operating cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and
liabilities as current and non-current.

o. Cash and cash equivalents (for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

p. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to selt an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
agreed transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liability takes place either:
A%

¥ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company
uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in actlve markets for identical assets or liahilities;

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable;

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unohservable.

¢- Financia! Instrument

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial asset is any assets that is
»  Cash;
»  An equity instrument of another entity;
» A contractual right:
i. To receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

ii.To exchange financial assets or financial liahilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially favorable to the entity; or

» A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

i. A non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of
the entity’s own equity instruments; or .
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i, A derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity
instruments.

Financial assets include current and non-current investments, loan to employees and body
corporate, security deposits, trade receivables and other eligible current and non-current assets

Financigl Liability is any liabilities that is

» A contractual obligation :
i. To deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

ii. To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavorable to the entity; or

> A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

i. A non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number
of the entity’s own equity instruments; or

fi. A derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity
instruments. For this purpose, rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed number of
the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any currency are equity
instruments if the entity offers the rights, options or warrants pro-rata to all of its
existing owners of the same class of its own non-derivative equity instruments.

Financial liabilities include Loans, trade payable and eligible current and non-current liabilities.
Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

i.  The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

i. The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and

ii. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely paymentis of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:
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i. The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

ti. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income.

All financial liahilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method or fair value through profit or loss.

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when and only when the Company becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI} or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) as the case may be.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value through profit or
loss.

tffective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument
and allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received
that form integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets which are classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss and is
included in the "Other income” line item.

Trade Receivahles

Trade receivables can be classified into two categories, one is from the customers into the market
and second one is from the Government of India in the form of subsidy. As far as Government
portion of receivables are concerned, credit risk is Nil. For market receivables from the customers,
the company extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The company considers
factors such as credit track record in the market and past dealings for extension of credit to
customers. The company monitors the payment track record of the customers. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored.

The company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its
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company has also taken security deposits from its customers, which mitigate the credit risk to some
extent.
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at transaction price.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company applies the expected credit toss model for recognising impairment loss on financial
assets measured at amortized cost, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or
other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls}, discounted at the original effective interest
rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the ioss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit
losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls
that will result if default cccurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not
cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss
model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit guality as
compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-
month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit
losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition.
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For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset and that
transactions are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected allowance is computed based on a provisicn matrix which takes into account historical
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Company recognizes its interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or
loss, such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that
financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of financial asset between the part it continues to recognize under continuing
involvement, and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognized and sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognized and any cumulative gain or allocated to it that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise heen recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is allocated between the
part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured
at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial
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liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the
effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is
included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate)
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement being recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the 'Other income’ line
item.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company
that are designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in profit
or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds {(net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognized as transaction costs of the loan.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a
breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting
date, the Company does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the
reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand
payment as a consequence of the breach.

Trade Payables

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after th orting period or not paid/payable within




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31st, 2024

operating cycle. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Equity Instruments

An equily instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recognized at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Preference Share Capital

Preference share capital is classified as a financial liability or an equity instrument based on the
substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form.

Preference share is classified as an equity instrument if, and only if, both conditions a) and b)
below are met

a} Theinstrument includes no contractual obligation:
i. Todeliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

ii. To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that is potentially unfavorable to the issuer.

b) [fthe instrument will or may be settled in the issuer’s own equity instruments, it is:

i. A non-derivative that includes no contractual cbligation for the issuer to deliver a
variable number of its own equity instruments; or

ii. A derivative that will be settled only by the issuer exchanging a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments. For this
purpose, rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity
instruments for a fixed amount of any currency are equity instruments if the entity
offers the rights, options or warrants pro rata to all of its existing owners of the same
class of its own non-derivative equity instruments.

Preference share capital is classified as a financial liability if it provides for mandatory redemption
for a fixed or determinable amount at a fixed or determinable future date, or gives the holder the
right to require the issuer to redeem the instrument at or after a particular date for a fixed or
determinable amount,

Compound Financial Instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible instrument) issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
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another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognized as a
liability on an amortized cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
compenent from the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole. This is
recognized and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.
In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognized in equity will be transferred to other
component of equity. When the conversion optien remains unexercised at the maturity date of
the convertible note, the balance recognized in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instrument are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are recognized directly in equity. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are
amortized over the lives of the convertible instrument using the effective interest method.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt
instruments substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of
the terms of existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the
debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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_{Rs. In Laes]

Particulars As on 3lst As on 31st
March, 2024  March, 2023
NOTE No. "5"
Investments
I
a. Investments In Equity Instruments No. of Shores Amount Amount
Investment in equity shares of Assoclate Company [at cost] Unquoted, Fully Paldup of Rs. 1G/-
caclh
Resurgent India Food & Fuel Private Limited 2.411.,500 241
Bharat Digital Educalion Privale Limited {Formerly known as Quality Healin and Education Private
Limited; 5,000,000 500
Total 741
No. of
b. Investment in 9% Secured Non Convertible Debentures Unguoted Fully Pald up Debentures | Amount Amount
Himalayaputra Aviation Limited 1,000 1.000
JIL Information Technalogy Lid. 3,000 3,000
Total 4,000 5
Grand Total | 4,741
NOTE No. "6°
Other Financlal Assets
Term Depasit Account with Maturily of more than 12 Months pledged as mavgin with banks against LC/BG i3 A217
Security Deposil 1,615 1,614
Other Receivables 396 87
1,974 2,518
NOTE Ne. "7"
Other Non-Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses 3 4
Tax Assets [Net)
Advance Tax 715 724
718 728
NOTE No. "8
Inventories
Raw Materials 747 809
Wark in Progress 1,835 1,528
Finished Goods 317 479
Finished Goods In Transil 3,188 3,644
Siores & Spares 3.836 3,308
Stores & Spares in Transi| 47 .
Catalyst 556 3
10,526 10,449
ROTE No. "9"
Investments
a. Investments in Equity Shares Quoted Fully Paidup No. of Bhares Amount Amount
Apolle Hospilals Enterprise Limited 400 25 -
Axis Bank Limited 1000 10
Bharat Dynamics Limited 1000 18 B
Bharal Electronics Limiled 2000 4
BEML Limited 1000 32 -
| Dalntia Bharat Limited 1000 19
|Data Patterns (indial Limited 300 7
Devyani International Limited 9000 14 B
HDFC Bank Limiled BGD 12 .
ICICT Bank Limited 3500 38 -
Indian Railway Catering and Tounsm Corporation Limited 1500 14 -
ITC Limited 5500 24 N
Larzen and Toubre Limited 3000 113 -
Paras Defence and Space Technologies Limited 700 4
Reliance Industries Limited 3680 109
JI0 Financial Services Limiled 880 24
58! Life Insurance Company Limued 1000 15
TATA Communications Limited 1000 20 -
Tata Consultancy Services Limited 300 12 =
Tejas Networks Limited 1500 10 |
Tata Teleservices (Mahurashira) Limited 1000 7 |
Ultratech Cement Limiled 1000 o7
Vedanta Limited 2000 5
Total 635 .
b. Other Investmont No. of Shares Arngunt Amount
Gold Bonds Quoted
Government of India SGB 19MY 285 11 2.50 FV Rs, 4590 2000 129
Nippon India Mutual Fund ETF Gold BeES 500000 283
Total 412 = )
Grand Total 1,047 -




Kotes to the Standalone Flnanclal Statements for the Year Endcd

31st March, 2024

{Bs. In Lacs}

Particulars

As on 31st
March, 2024

As on 31st
Maorch, 2023

NOTE No. “10"
Trade Receivables

Others [Unsecured, Considered Good) 29,372 43,123
Less . Provision for Bad & Doubtiu) Debts 563 561
28,809 42.560
Agelng analysls of trade recceivables As on 31.03.2024 .
Particulars Leas Than 6 6 Months-1 Years 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More lhan 3 Total
Months Years
a) Undispuled Trade receivables- Conasidered 28,744 28,744
Good
1) Undisputed Trade receivables-
Considered Doubtlul -
¢) Undispuied Trade receivables- Credit - 3
Impaired -
d}) Dispuled Trade receivables- Considered 65 65
Good
€] Disputed Trade receivables- Considered - -
Doybiful
) Dispuled Trade receivables- Credil -
Impaired -
Total 28,744 - - 65 28,809
Apeinpg analysis of trade receivables As on 31.03,2023
Particulars Tiets Thano 5 Months-1 Years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 Total
Months Years
a) Undisputed Trade receivables- Considered - 7.880 30,885 3,450 280 42,496
Good
b} Undisputed Trade receivables- - - - N
Conatered Doubtful
¢) Undisputed Trade receivables- Credit - - -
m 1
d] Disputed Trade receivables- Considered - - 65 65
Good
€) Disputed Trade receivables- Considered - - - -
Doubtful !
) Disputed Trade receivables- Credit - - - - T
Impaired
Total - 7,880 30,85 3,450 345 42,561
NOTE No. "11~
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks 762 1,450
Term, Deposit Account with Maturity of Less Than Three Months 612 11,044
Term Depasit Account with Maturity of Less Than Three Months pledged as margin with hanks against LC/BGs 5,270 548
Cash in Hand 2 2
6,682 13,045
NOTE No. "12"
Other Bank Balances
Deposits with Maturity for more than 3 months bul Less than 12 months 9,938 1.236
Deposita wilh Maturity for more than 3 months bul Less than 12 months pledged as margin wilh banks
agamst LC/BGs 4,974 9,206
- 14,512 10,442
NOTE No. "13"
Other Flnancial Assets
Accrued Interest Reccivable 178 99
Other Receivables 76 17
Related Party 22,002 17,959
22,346 18,075
NOTE No. "14"
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses 119 108
Advances to Vendors 1,335 483
GST Refund Receivable 403 78
GET/VAT Receivable 6,084 4,335
Inveslment in Gold Bars 274 .
TDS & Advance Taxes 840 246
4,055 5,250




Neotes to the Standalone Flnancial Statements for the Year Ended 3ist March, 2024

{Rs. In Lacs)
NOTE No. "15" As on 31st March, As on 31st
Share capital 2024 March, 2023
Authorised Share Capital
Eqully Share Capital
82,50,00.000 [Previous perind £2,50,00,000]1 Shares of
Rs. 10/- each 82.500 82,500
Preference Share Capital
35,00,06,000 [Previous period  35,00,00,000)
Converlible Preference Shares of Rs, 10/- cach 35,000 35,000
2,50,00,000 (Previous period 2,50,00,000)
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/
each 2,500 2.500
120,000 120,000
Issued, subscribed snd pald up capital
Equity Share Capital
35,24,57 225 [Previc:u:ﬁ period 35,24,57,225) Shares of 35 246 35,246
Rs. 10/ - each {ullv paid up
As on 31si As on 3]si
g;::::]: of Shareheolders Having More than 5% Srmoefs March, 2024 % of Shares March, 2023
[No of Shares] [No of Shares)
Equity Sharcs
Jaypee Uttar Bharat Vikaa Privale Limited 56.70% 200,050,000 35.76% 200,030,000
Jaypee Fertihzers & Indusiries Limited 36.03% 126,982 549 36.03% 126,982,549
Mahabhadra Constructions Limited 7.09% 25,000,000 TF.09% 25,000,000

Movement of detalls of Sharehoiders Having More
than 5% Shares

Az on 31st March, 2024

As on 31st March, 2023

No. ol equil, % of % Change No. of equit % Change durin
Equity Shares ghares l"‘lle-ld\}r s;:t:s during Yegar shares gcldy % of tatul sharcs Yegar ¢
Jaypee Uttar Bharat Vikas Private Limited (Inclusive of
shares heid by nominees)
COpening Balance 200,050,000 | 56 76% 200,050,000 56.76% -
Acguired/ Converted during the year - | 0.00% - 0.00% -
Clasing Balance 200,050,000 | 556.76% 200,050,000 56.76% -
Jaypee Fertilizers & Industries Limited
Opening Batauce 126,982,549 | 36.03% 117,982,549 33 48%
Acquired/Converted duning the year - | 0.00% 9,000,000 2.55%
Closing Balance 126,982,549 | 236.03% 126,082,549 36.03%
Mahabhadra Constructions Limited
Opening Balance 25,000,000 | 7.09% 25,000,000 7.09%
Acquired/Converted durning the year - | 0.00% - . 0.00%
Closing Balance 25,000,000 | 7.09% 25,000,000 7.09%
Preference Shares
Jaypee Fertihizers & Indusiries Limited
Opening Balance - - 9.000.000 100% -
Acguired f Converted during the year - - - -9,000,000 100%
Closing Balance -




As on 3lst As on 3lst
Recenciliatlon of No. of Shares Outstandlng March, 2024 March, 2023
No, of Shares No. of Shares

Equity Share

Equity Shares Outstanding at the Reginning of the

Year 352,457,225 342,457,225
Equity Shares Issued During the Year - 9.000,000
Outstanding al the End of the Year 352,457,225 352,457,225

Preference Share
Preference Shares Qutstanding at the Beginning ol the

Year - 9,000,000
Preference Shares converted to Equity Shares During
the Year - 9,000,000

Oustanding at the End of the Year B )

Equity Shares

The Company has 1wo classes of shares referred to as Equity Shares & Preflerence Shares having lace value of Rs. 10/- each. Each holder of Equily Share is
entitled to ane vate per share. In the event of hquidalion, each share carries equal rights and will be entitled to receive equal amouni per share out of the
remaining amount avallable with the Company alter makine preferential payments,

The Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company is held by Jaypee Uttar Bharal Vikas Private Limited (Holding Company-56.76%) including 43,000 Equity
Shares through its nominees. Javpee Fertilizers & Indusiries Limited {36.03%), Mahabhadra Constructions Limited (7.09%] and Gihers (0.12%I.

The Campany declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend propesed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeling The Board ol Directors has not proposed dividend lar the currenl/ previous years.

Preference Shares

00,00,000 11% Campulsorly Cenvertible Preference shares {CCPS) of Kanpur Fertihzers & Chemicals Limiled held by Jaypee Fertihizers & Industries Limited
(JFIL) were aliowted on 2151 July 2017 and have been converted into Equity Shares as per terms of allotment, on 27th May, 2022,

{Rs. In Lacs)
NOTE No, 167 As on 31st March, As on 31st
Other Equity 2024 Murch, 2023
(1) Equity Component of Financlal Instrument
Qpening Balance - 90
Less: Conversion During Lhe Year . 000
Closing Balance - -
{11} Reserves and Surplus
[a} Surplus [Profit and Loss Balance)
Cpening Balance 3925 2,243
Profit / (Less) for the year 1,353 1.682
Closlng Balance 5,277 3,925
[b) Securlty Premlum Resetve
Opening Balance 42,382 42,3582
Addition during the Year - -
Ciosing Balance 42,382 43,382
Total Reserve & Surplus 47,659 46,307
{1i] Other Comprehansive Income
[a) Remeasurement of Defined benefit plan |Net of Tax|
Opening Balance 20 152
Addition fDeduction during Lthe Year 142 pl
Closing Balance 343 201

Total Other Equity 48,0602 46,508




Notes to the Standnlone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2024

|R=s. In Lacs)
Particulars As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
NOTE Na. "17"
Cther Financial Liabilltles
Security arl Other Deposits 1,662 1,485
}G662 1,485
NOTE No. "18~
Laong Term Provisions
Provislon for Employee Benefit
Gratuily 194 168
Leave Encashment 148 123
34z 291
NOTE No. "19"
Deferred Tax Asscts
Provision for Leave encashment Gratuily & Bonus 197 129
Brought Forward Losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation . -
Deferred Tax Liabllities
Dilference in book depreciation and tax deprecialion 2,185 3,274
Met Deferred Tax Assets/f{Llabllty] 2,038 3.145
MAT Credlt Entltlement - 2411
Total 2,038 724
Movement In deferred tax balances
31st March, 2024
Particulars Net Balance Recognised In | Recognised Net Balance
April 1, 2023 PoL in OCI Mar 31, 2024
Dilference in WDV as per income tax & WOV as per Co. Act 2013 [3.274) 1,089 - (2.185)
Provisian for Leave encashmernt ,Gratuity & Bonus 129 25 8) 147
Brought Ferward Losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation (8] 0 - -
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) [3,145) 1,118 i8] [2.038]
31st March, 2023
Farticulars Net Balance Recognised In | Reccognised Net Balance
April 1, 2022 P&L in OC1 Mar 31, 2023
Dilference in WDV as per Income tax & WDV as per Co. Act 2013 4,206} a31 - 3,274)
Provision for Leave encashment & Gratuity 129 5 5] 129
Brought Forward Losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation 2,299 2,299) - -
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) [1,777) {1,363) (S} {3,145}




[Rs. In Lacs)

As on 3lst As on 31st
Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023
NOTE No. "207
Trade Payables
Others 69,940 70,312
Micro Small Medium Enterprises 373 397
70,313 70,709
Details relating to Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprizes Is as under -
a) Principal amount 373 397
4] Interest thercon -
¢} The amount of interest paid in terms of
section 16 of the Micre, Smali and Medium
Euterprises Development Act, 2006 Nil Nil
d) The amount of interest due and payable
for the period of delay in making payiment
withaut additing the interest specilicd Wil it
e} The amount of interest accrued and
rernzining unpaid as at 30th June, 2023 Nil il
J The amount of inlerest remaining due and
payable ¢ven in the suceeding vears, unil
such date when (he the interest iz acluzlly
paid il Nil
Ageing analysis of trade payable As on 31.03.2024
Partlculars Less Then } Year 1.2 Years 2-3 Years Mor;e:l::n 3 Total
a) MSME * 373 - - - 373
b) Others 69,892 24 22 69,940
¢} Disputed dues- MSME
d) Disputed dues- Others |
Total 70,265 24 22 | 70,313
* MSME Dues are less than 45 days
Ageing analysis of trade payable As on 31.03.2023
Partlculars Less Then 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mor;e’l;l::n 3 Total
al MSME 387 - - 397
h) Others 70,284 & 20 70,312
¢} Disputed dues- MSME
d) Disputed dues- Others
Total 70,681 <] 20 70,709
* MSME Dues are less than 45 days
NOTE No. "21"
Other Financlal Liabllities
Payable on Account of Employees 529 416
Security and Other Deposits 142 142
Amount Payable to Related Parties (3] 66
Qther Payable 5,968 9,257
6,708 9,881
NOTE No. "22"
Other Carrent Liabllities
SBtatutory Taxes and Dues 437 540
Advance Received (rom Customers 420 2,262
857 2,802
NOTE No. "23"
Provisions
Gratuity 22 38
Leave Encashment 45 4]
77 79
NOTE No. "24"
Current Tax Liability
Proviston for Income Tax 788 5349
788 534




Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2024

{Rs. In Lacs}
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.09:2024 31.03.2023
{udited) (Audited)
~ NOTE No. "25"
Revenue from Operation
Sate of Products
Urea Sale 35,944 32,888
Govt Subsidy- Urea 236,690 274,833
GAIL Subsidy- Gas pool 14,979 -
Sale-Flyash 132 154
287,745 307,875
Other Operating Revenue o
Sale -Traded Product 5,866 5,014
Ammonia Sale 1,274 6,952
7,140 11,966
294,885 319,841
NOTE No. "26" i
Other Income
Interest Income (including fair value of
financial liability at amortised cosi) 1,420 318
Insurance Claim Received 47 -
Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) - -
Misc Receipts 688 206
2,155 524
NOTE No. "27"
Cost of material Consumed
Raw Materials Consumed 201,877 231,056
Coal Consumed 6,398 10,175
Bags Consumed 3,001 2,908
211,276 244,139
NOTE No. "28"
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Wheat seed 2,497 2,206
Calcium Nitrate 191 -
Zyme 1,078 1,024
Micro Nutrient 444 556
Sulphur 344 211
Zinc Sulphate 28 24
City Compost 27 19
Ferrous Sulphate 275 195
Others 55 92
4,939 4,327
NOTE No, "29"
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress
Opening Stock
Work-in-Progress 1,528 1,101
Finished Goods 4,122 596
5,650 1,697
Closing Stock
Work-in-Progress 1,836 1,528
Finished Goods 3,504 4,122
5,340 5,650
310 {3,953)




Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2024

{Rs. In Lacs|

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(Audited] (Audited)
NOTE No. "30"
Employee Benefit Expense
Solaries and Wages 5,586 1,119
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 197 194
Gratuity 97 it
Stall Wellare 23 30
5,903 4,450
NOTE No. "31"
Finance Cost
Interest te Banks on Working Capital - 296
Interest to Banks on Term Loan - 1,445
Interest to Others 2,480 4,935
Financial Charges - 103
2,480 6,779
NOTE No. “32"
Depreciation and Amortization expense
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 7,320 7,225
7,320 7,225
NOTE No. "33"
Other expenses
Repairs & Maintenance - Others 248 201
Electricity Charges 39,560 37,426
Store and Spares Consumed 2,390 2,127
Repairs & Maintenance - Piant 1,818 2,010
Directors' Meeting Fee 36 21
Commission to Non-executive Directors 263 -
Insurance 231 250
Rates & Taxes 300 107
Loading & Unloading Charges 1,227 1,218
‘I'ravelling & Conveyance Expenses 308 245
Corporate Social Responsibility 43 93
Vehicle Running & Hiring Charges 245 244
Freight & Octroi Expenses 6,310 5,625
Advertising and Sales Promotion 695 1,440
Legal & Professional 3,488 1,161
Bank Charges & LC/BG Commission 64 451
Salcty & Sccurity 335 321
Donation & Charily 3,000 -
Horticulture and Gardening 44 26
Auditors Remuneration® 28 25
{*} please refer details helow
Fair value of Financial Liability at amortised
cost 118 110
Miscellanecus Expenses 493 217
61,266 53,318

NOTE No. "34"
Exceptional Items {Nef)

{*) Auditors Remuneration

Particulars

Audit Fees (Including Limited Review [ees)
Tax Audit Fees

Cost Audit Fees

Internal Audil Fees

Secretarial

Management Audit Fees

Audit Expenses

Total

For year ended

For year ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
8 8
3 3
3 3
8 8
1 1
3 -
3 2
28 25




Kanpur Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statermnents for the Year Ended 31st March, 2024

NOTE No. "35" Disclosure as per Indian Accounting Standard - 12 on ‘Income taxes'

(a) Income Tax Expense
i) Income tax recognised in statement of profit or loss
{ Rs. In Lacs)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current tax expense

Current vear 787 1,034
MAT Credit 2,517 -
Adjustment for prior periods 74 -
3,378 1,034
Deferred tax expense
Crigination and reversal of temporary (1,183) 1,363
Reduction in tax rate C -
(1,183) 1,363
Total income tax expense 2,195 2,397

ii} Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
( Rs. In Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Before tax Tax Net of tax | Before tax Tax expense/ Net of tax
expense / [benefit)
(benefit)
- Net actuarial gains/ (losses)
23 8 15 14 5 9
on defined benefit plans ®) )
- Net gains/(losses) on 195 (68) 127 i ) i
Investments
218 ('76) 142 14 (5) 9

{ii) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Accounting Profit/(Loss) before tax expense 3,548 4,079
Enacted tax rate 34.944% 34.944%
Taxed at India Statutory Tax Rates 1,240 1,425
Tax Effect of:-

Non-Deductible Expenses 1,238 102
Non-Taxable Incomes (55) (27)
Expenses disallowed earlier now allowed as per Income Tax iel) {40)
Impact of Depreciation as

per Income Tax Act,1961 1,117 948
Carry Forward of Income Tax Losses for current year (3,478) (2,408)
Current tax of Prior Period - -
Deffered Tax Impact (1,107) 1,367
Tax Expenses [1,107) 1,367

iv) The tax rates under Indian Income Tax Act, for Financial Year 2023-24 is 34.944% (Previous year 2022-23 is

34.944%).




Kanpur Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2024

{ Rs. In Lacs)

NOTE No. "36" Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 on 'Earnings per Share’

Basic and diluted earnings per share [Rupees)

Mar 31st, 2024

Mar 31st, 2023

Basic earnings per share (Refer foctnote a & b) ) 0.42 0.48
Diluted eanings per share 0.42 0.48
Nominal value per share 10.00 10.00
{a) Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in Lacs)

Profit for the vear 1,495 1,661
Profit attributable to equity shareholders - 1,495 1,691
(b) Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos in Lacs)

Opening balance of issued eguity shares 3,525 3,434
Effect of shares issued/ Converted during the year, if any - 90
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (b) 3,525 3,525
ic) Weighted average number of Convertible Preference shares

Opening balance of issued Preference shares - 90
Effect of shares [ssued during the year, if any - -
Balance shares convertible at the end of the Year - 90
Effect of shares Converted during the year, if any - [90]
Weighted average number of Convertible Preference shares (c) - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (b+c) 3,525 3,525

g
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Kanpur Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March,2024

Note No, "38" Corporate social responsibilities expenses [CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Lhe Company is 1equired to spend, by every
financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the
three immediately preceding financial years. The company incurs CSR expenses in accordance

with its CSR Policy. The dctails of CSR expenses for the year are as under:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
A. Amount required to be spent during the year - -
B. Amount Actually spenf during the year 42.67 92.59
Amount upspent (if any) - -
Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2024: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount spent Yet to be Total
spent
- (i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - - -
- {ii) On purposes other than (i) above 42.67 - 42.67
Grand Total 42.67
Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2023: {(Rs. in Lakhs|
Particulars Amount spent Yet to be Total
gpent
- {i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
- (ii) On purposes other than (i} above 92.5% - 92.59
Grand Total 92.59

Break-up of the CSR expenses under major heads is as

{Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year

Particulars ended
31.03.2024
1) Sardar Patel Uchchatar Madhyamik Vidhyalaya Rewa 31.00
2) Jaypee Sewa Sansthan (for promoting education) 11.00
3) Water Coolers provided to Atal Residential School (Govi. School), Naurwa,
. 0.67
Bilhaur UP
Total 42.67
(Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year
Particulars ended
31.03.2023
1) Smart Board for School 30.79
2) DY. Commissioner Indusiry, DIC Kanpur for ODOP Exhibiation 5.00
3) DY. Commissioner Industry, Kanpur for Woolen Blankets 0.93
4) Provided Lab equipments to Schools 20.18
5) Jaypee Sewa Sansthan 21.00
6) Anglo Vedic Educational Association 14.06
7) Labour Office-2 System Set 0.63
Total 92.59




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED
NOTE No. "39" FOCRMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH
2024

1. Contingent Liability and Commitments not provided for in respect of

Rs. in Lacs

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
a) Claims against the Disputed Income Tax Liability 11 328
(Including Tax) not acknowledged as Debt
b) Claims against the Disputed Goods and Service Tax 356 356
liability (Including Tax) not acknowledged as Debt.(#)
Amount deposited under protest. 57 12
¢) Legal claims against Civil/Labour Court Cases 1,175 3,088
d) Stamp Duty (U/s 47 of Stamp Act) 4,223 4,223
¢) Outstanding Balances of Bank Guarantees 652 643
Margin Money deposited against the above 653 971
f) Outstanding Letters of Credit (including Foreign LCs) 9,000 9,000
Margin Money deposited against the above 9,566 9,008 |

(#) The Appeals are yet to be filed before State Bench of Goods and Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal as and when they will constitute. Reference Notification No. 5.0.4073(E)
dated 14t Seplember,2023. As per pre deposit condition 20% of outstanding demand
has been deposited and right 10 appeal before Appellate Tribunal has been reserved.

2. Related Party Disclosure
Name of Related Party and Relationship

a) Holding Company

Jaypee Uttar Bharat Vikas Private Limited, (JUBVPL), Jaypee Fertilizers & Industries
Limited (JFIL) & Jaiprakash Associates Limited {(JAL)

b) Fellow Subsidiary Companies

1. Jaypee Infratech Limited (subsidiary of JAL)

fits status as subsidiary of JAL is subfect to the Order dated 24.03.2021 of Supreme
Court and consequent proceedings with NCLT and the matter has not yet attained

SJinality.}
Bhilai Jaypee Cement Limited (JV subsidiary of JAL)

Himalyan Expressway Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of JAL)
Gujarat Jaypee Cement & Infrastructure Limited (JV subsidiary of JAL)

A S B A

JAL)




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED
NOTE No, "39" FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH
2024

Jaypee Agra Vikas Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of JAL)
Jaypee Cement Corporation Limited {(JCCL) (wholly owned subsidiary of JAL)
Himalyaputra Aviation Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of JAL)

© ® N o

Jaypee Assam Cement Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of JAL)
10.  Jaypee Infrastructure Development Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of JAL).

11.  Jaypee Healthcare Limited. (wholly owned subsidiary of JIL) Entire 42,75,00,000
Equity Shares (including beneficial interest for 600 shares) are held by Jaypee
Infratech Limited (JIL), the holding company, till 10.03.2023. Out of the total
numbers of shares, JIL had pledged 63.65% shares in favour of lenders of Jaypee
Healthcare Limited through their Security Trustee- Vistra ITCL (India) Limited
(VISTRA). On 10.03.2023 the aforesaid pledged were invoked by Lenders through
their Security Trustee (VISTRA) due to continuing default in debt servicing and
shares transferred from demat account of JIL to Vistra. Accordingly, the beneficial
ownership and right to possession of aforesaid shares vest with respective lenders
till the repayment of debt by the Company. Subsequently, JIL had made a
disclosure dated 15.03.2023 to the Stock Exchanges informing therein that
accordingly, JIL’s sharcholding in Jaypee Healthcare Limited has reduced to
36.35% and Jaypee Healthcare has now become an Assocliate Company as
against wholly owned subsidiary of JIL.

12. Jaypee Cement Hockey (India) Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of JAL)

13,  Jaiprakash Agri Initiatives Company Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of JCCL)
14,  Yamuna Expressway Tolling Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of JAL )

15.  East India Energy (P) Ltd. (wholly owned subsidiary of JAL w.e.f. 29.12.2022)

c) Associate Companies:
1. Resurgent India Food & Fuel Service Private Limited (became Associate Company
w.e.f. 25.08.2023)
2. Bharat Digital Education Private Limifed (Erstwhile Quality Health And Education
Private Limited) (became Associate Company w.e.f. 14.09.2023)

3. Mahabhadra Construction Limited (MCL) (wholly owned subsidiary of Jaypee
Infra Ventures Private Limited (JIVPL)

4. JIL Information Technology Limited (JILIT) (Subsidiary of JIVPL)
Gaur & Nagi Limited {wholly owned subsidiary of JILIT)

\

6. Jaypee Infra Ventures Private Limited (Holding Company of JILIT and Associate
Company of JAL)




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTE No. "39" FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH

2024

d) Key Managerial Personnel

o NOo Uk L=

9.

10.
11.

12.
13.
14.
15.

Shri Manoj Gaur — Non Executive Chairman

Shri Alok Gaur - Joint Managing Director & CEO

Ms. Sunita Joshi — Non Executive Director

Shri R.K. Pandey - Non Executive Director (Resigned w.e.f 1t August, 2022)
Shri S.D. Nailwal - Non Executive Director

Shri Ajit Kumar - Non Executive Director

Shri Anil Mohan — Non Executive Director.

Shri Satish Charan Kumar Patne - Independent Director (Ceased {rom
Directorship w.e.f. 2n May, 2023)

Shri K.V.Rgjendran - Independent Director
Shri Devinder Singh Ahuja - Non Executive Director

Shri Narinder Kumar Grover - Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 24w
September, 2022)

Shri Vinod Sharma - Director (Appointed w.e.f. 24th September, 2022)
Ms. Ritu Gupta- Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f 27t May, 2022)
Shri Sudhir Rana — Chief Financial Officer (Resigned w.e.f 31st March, 2023)
Shri R.C. Sharma- Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.{ 19t April, 2023)

e) Relative of Director |[with whom the Company was having transaction during FY

2022-23})

1.

Shri Sunny Gaur, Relative of Shri Manoj Gaur @ 7 @




Note No. "39" FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31S8T MARCH 2024
Related Party Disclesure
i) Disclosure of Related Party Transactions and their Closing Balances is as Under !

{Rs. In Lacs)

————
Naturc of Transcation During the ycar Payment Outstanding Balance as at
|Name of Related Party Relatlonship ;
Transcation
FY 2023-24 FY 202223 FY 2023-24 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Jaypee Fertilizers & Holding Reimursement ) 2 1 515 1515
Industries Limited Company Towards Expenses . i ' |
Jaypee Uttar Bharat Holding Reimursement ) 0 1 .
Vikas Private Limited Company Towards Expenses
Purchase of Puwer
Cement Purchased 2
Jaiprakash Associates Holding Assets Pucthnsed 812 - 4443 18.436 16143
Limuted Company Hotej Services 4 - ' ' '
Rent 1 -
Fat & Land
Purchased i 696
Services 2,414 812
. 1
- Fellow Belicopter &
pimaleyapura AVISHON |subsidiary | Aeroplane hire 121 120 1,100 12 12
Company Charges
Feliow Secunty & Medical
. . 74
Mahabhac!ra Subsidiary |Manpower Services 313 2 336 -30 -27
Constructions Ltd .
Company
Sale of Service
Manpower Supply 151 79
i i 4
JIL Information Associate Assets Purchased 31 65 5,306 164D 97
Technology Lid., Compuony Flast Puiglinsed 2 M50 1,191
Sale of Service 59
| Resurgent India Food & Associate ,
Fuel Service {P) L1d. Company Sale of Service 400 - 598 .
Jaypee Inlra Venture Pvt Associate Sale of Service 295 296 27
Ld Company
Jaypee Cement Associate Purchase of AC
Corporation Lid. Company Sheets S 300 300
Relative of
Shd Sunny Gaur Mano} Gaur Flat Purchased 2,800 -
{Mon-Executive
Chairmanj
. Associate Publishing Charges
Gaur & Nagi Limited Company &, Services provided 19 ! 220 199 -
Total 22,023 17,894
Payable f Credlt Balance of
Receviable / Debit Balance of Related
party as at 315t March 2024 [Ra. In Lacs) Related party as at 31st March,
2024 (Rs. In Lacs)
Jaypee Fertilizers & Industries Limited 1,515 Himalayaputra Aviation Limited 12
Resurgent India Feod % Fuel
Lt
JIL Information Technology 1,640 Service (P] Ltd. .
Jaypee Uttar Bharat Vikaa Private Limited 1 Jaypee Infra Venture Pvi Lid o7
Gaur & Nagi Limited 199 Jaypee Vasant Continental
Jaiprakash Associates Limited 18,438 Gaur & Nagi Limited -
Jaypee Cemenl Corporation Ltd. 300 Mahabhadra Coenstructions Ltd -30
Total 22,092 Tatal -69




Note No. "39" FORMING PART OF THLE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH
Related Party Disclosure

Key Manngerlal Person

Relationshlp

Nature of
Transcation

Transaction Durdng the year

Outstanding Balance as at

3Ist March,

FY 2023-24 FY 2022.23 2024 31let March, 2023
M | Gau Non Executive
ang) Laur Chairiman  |Commission 201 e
Short lerm
WD & CB employee benelit
Alok Gaur Jt. MD & CEO 163 109 -3 -6
Arrear of (P year
Salary 53
. Non Exceutive
S D Nailwal Director Commission 20 = g
p s Non Executive
Sunita Joshi Director Comniission 10 - -
. Independent
S C K Patne Director Commission LO - - :
Non Executive
Anil Mohan Director Commission 3 -0 nY
: ) Independent
KV Rajendran Director Commission 2 - Z
; . Non Execulive |AGvisory Fees 27 27
Ajit Kuman Director Cornmission 3 2 *
. . Nor Executive |Advisory Fees 7 ks
Devinder Singh Ahuja Director Commission 3 ° b
Independent
M K Grover Director Coramission 3 _
Vinod Sharma Director Commission 3 . . .
Short term
Sudhic R oF employee benelit
udhir Rana 8] Salary 30 n )
Car Hire Charges 4 -0
Short rerm
Ramesh Chand Sharma CFQ cmployee beneht
Salary 30 -2 .
Car Hire Charges 4 -0 -
. Company Short term
Ritu Gupta .
¥ Bup Secretary employee benefit
Salary 21 7 2 -t




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTE No. "39" FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH

2024

3. Financial Instrument

(i) Capital Management

The gearing ratios at the end of reporting year are as under:

Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Debt*

Cash and Bank Balance
(including Cash and Bank

Balances in a disposal group 21,606 24,304
held for sale)

Net Debt - -
Equity 83,248 81,754
Total Debt + Equity - -
Net Debt to Equity Ratio N.A N.A

*Debt is defined as Non-current and Current borrowings.

(ii) Categories of Financial Instruments

Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023 |

Financial Assets measured at
Amortised Cost
a) Cash and Cash Equivalent

including Bank Balances 21,606 24,304
¢) Other Financial Assets 24,320 20,593
d) Trade Receivable 28,809 42,561
Total 74,734 87,458
Rs. In Lacs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Financial Liabilities measured
at Amortised Cost

a) Non-Current Borrowing

b) Current Borrowing

b) Trade Payable 70,313 70,709
c) Other Financial Liability* 8,370 11,365
Total 78,683 82,075

* including current maturities of long-term debt

(iii) Fair Value Hierarchy

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, Bank Balance, other
bank balances, trade payables, other financial liabilities and other financial assets are
considered to be the same as their fair values,
There are no Financial Assets/Liabilities cla -,'b (]

—
-

q their short-term nature.
PTevel 1 and Level 2.

oK




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED
NOTE No. "39" FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH
2024

(iv) Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables and other payables
including financial obligations. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance
the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets are trade &
receivables, security deposits and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its
operations. The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial
instruments:

- Credit risk

- Market risk

-Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Company. Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, investment in debt
securities, loans & advances, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with banks and
financial institutions.

Trade receivables

The company sells urea and deals with the authorized agents only and has entered
individual contract with them, meets the performance obligation when the urea reaches the
dealer, sells at the government regulated price and recognizes the revenue on satisfying the
said performance obligation.

The fellowing list represents more than 5% of total balance of trade receivable:
Rs. In Lacs
| S.No Particulars As at March 31st, 2024 As at March 31st, 2023

‘. 1 FICC, Gol 26,024 42,429

Cash and cash equivalents {including bank balances)
The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 21,606(31 March 2023: Rs. 24,304).
The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks with high credit ratings.

Provision for expected credit losses

The company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the
obligations and where the risk of default is very low. The company has customers
(government utilities) with sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and therefore the risk
of default is negligible or low. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts
that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on histlorical
payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The company has made a
provision of Rs. 563.00 towards doubtful debts, being the debtors on whom the company
has filed cases. These amounts have not paid by the customers and are disputed.

- Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future
cash and collateral obligations without j unacceptable losses. The Company’s
objective is to at all times maintain cls of liquidity to meet itsy cash and

LYp




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED
NOTE No, "39" FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH
2024

collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a
robust cash management system.

The Company maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet at
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is the carrying amounts of trade payables and other
lhabilities. The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the
financial liabilittes. The trade payable and other payables are having short-term durations.
The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. The
following table analysis financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities:

Rs. in Lacs

Particulars Weighted Average Within 1 1-5 S+ Total Carrying

Effective Interest Rate [%] Year Years | Years | Amouss

As at March 31, 2024

Borrowing 13 - e - : -

Payables

Trade 13 70,313 : -| 70,313 70,313

Other
Financial 13 8,370 - - 8,370 8,370
Liabilities

Total 78,683 - -| 78,683 78,683

[ As at March 31, 2023
Borrowing 13 - - | - - =

Trade 13 70,710 g -1 70,710 70,710
Payables |

Other
Financial 13 9,881 - 1,484 | 11,365 11,365
Liabilities ]
Total 80,590 0| 1,484 82,075 82,075

-Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates, will alfect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

(v] Interest Rate Risk Management
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. There is no interest risk on
borrowings at the Balance Sheet date as there is no outstanding of borrowings as on March
31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.Rate of interest of term deposits, security deposits etc. are
fixed and are carried at amortised cost and therefore same are not subject to interest rate
risk. The following table analysis the breakdown of the financial assets and liabilities into
interest-free and interest-bearing financial inst ents:




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED
NOTE No. "39" FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH

2024
Rs. in Lacs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Financial assets

Non-interest bearing

Cash and cash equivalents 794 1,452

Others Financial Assets 22,355 18,075

Trade receivables 28,809 42,561

Interest bearing

Other Financial Assets

-Term Deposits with Banks 5,888 11,592

-Security Deposits 1,616 1,615

Bank Balances other than cash and

cash equivalents

-Term Deposits with Banks 14,924 11,259
Financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing

Trade Payables 70,313 70,709
Other Financial Liabilities (including

S 6,717 ,881
lease liabilities) 2,88
Interest bearing
Other Financial Liabilities
-Security Deposits 1,662 | 1,484

(vi) Fixed Deposits Lien With-

Out of total I'DRs’ of Rs. 20,812 Lacs FDRs’ worth Rs. 10,264 Lacs are lien marked with
various authorities/government departments as under:

Sl. No. Name of Company/Department Rs, in Lacs

1 GAIL 9,566
2 Sales Tax/Vat Authorities 15
3 KESCO/UPPCL 508
- Railways - 71
S Labour Court 94
6 UP Pollution Control Board 10

Total 10,264

4. Certain balances of Trade Receivables, Advances from Customers, Advances to
suppliers, Trade Payables, Dealers etc. are subject to confirmations. In the opinion of the
Management no major adjustment will be requlred to be made m the books of account




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED
NOTE No. "39" FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH
2024

Rs. in Lacs

5. a) Ratios

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Current Ratio

Current Assets 93,385 99,821
Current Liabilities 78,752 84,006
Ratio 1.19 1.19
%Change

Debt Equity Ratio

Long Term Borrowings + Short Term

Borrowings 0.00 0.00
Shareholders Funds 83,248 81,754
Ratio - -
%Change -

Remarks : Change is due to Company repaid all its Borrowings during previous financial year

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

EBIDTA 13,348 18,083
Principal repayments of Long term

borrowings & Interest - 21,356
Ratio - 0.85
%Change 100%

Remarks : Company repaid all its Long Term borrowings along with interest in FY 2022-23

itself.

Return on Equity/ Investment Ratio

Net Profit after Taxes 1,494 1,691
Shareholder’s Equity 83,248 81,754
Ratio 0.02 0.02
%Change -

Inventory Turnover Ratio

Sales 2,94,885 3,119,841
Average Inventory 10,487 8,143
Ratio 28.12 39.28
%Change 28.42%

Remark - Average Inventory has

increased.

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Sales 2,94,885 3,19,841
Avg Accounts Receivable 35,685 60,423
Ratio 8.26 5.29 )
%Change -56.14%




KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED
NOTE No. “39" FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH

2024

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio
Net Credit Purchases

Avg Trade Payables

Ratio

%Change

Net Capital Turnover Ratio

Net Sales

Working Capital (Current Assets- Current
Liabilities)

Ratio

%Change

Net Profit Ratio
Net Profit

Net Sales

Ratio

%Change

Return on Capital Employed
Earning before Interest and Taxes
Capital Employed

Ratio

%Change

Remarks : Significant Change in Ratio due to decrease in EBIDTA.

Rs. in Lacs

2023-24 2022-23
70,313 70,709
70,511 64,088

1.00 1.10
0.09%

2,94,885 3,19,841
14,634 15,569
20.15 20.54
0.02%

1,494 1,691
2,94 885 3,19,841
0.01 0.01
13,348 18,083
79,857 80,770
16.71% 22.39%

25.37%

3



KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED
NOTE No. "39" FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH
2024

The title deeds of immovable Properties are deemed held in the name of company in terms
of Para 4 and Para 5, Para IT of Annexure A of approved Scheme of BIFR. Details as under :

Description of Gross Asset held in] Whether | Period during | Reason for
property carrying name of held in which it was not being
value name of not held in | held in name
(Rs. in promoter, name of the | of company
Lakhs) director or Company
their
relative or
employee
Land - Pursuant to
ParbatiBagla Transfer of
Road, Kanpur L.and in terms
Land - 56 of Para 4 and
cantonment, Para 5, Para
Kanpur Road, IT of Annexure
Kanpur A of approved
Land - Cee Kay| 24,343.87 Duncans No w.e.f Scheme of
Estate Industries 24.01.2012 BIFR dated
UdyogVihar Ltd. 16.01.2012
Industrial Area,
Panki, Kanpur

c] Loans and advances- to directors, KMP etc.
The company has not given any loans and advances- to directors, KMP etc.

d) Details of Benami Property held:
The company does not hold any benami property.

e) Willful Defaulter:
The company has not been termed as wilful dcfaulter.

f) Relationship with Struck off Companies:
The company has not dealt with any struck off company.

g} Borrowings and registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:
The company has prepaid its entire Term Loans and Working Capital fund based
facilities. No Dues Certificate has been issued by the lenders and Satisfaction of Charge
have also been filed with the Registrar of Companies.

h) Compliance with number of layers of companies:
The Company does not have subsidiary, therefore compliance with layers of companies
is not applicable.

i) The company has not advanced/loaned/invested borrowed funds to any directors /

KMPs’ and their relatives.
not applicable to comparﬁ'\g!
j q}/ --

j) Share premium, compliance with scheme

c =

New Qelhi )=
. L]
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KANPUR FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LIMITED

NOTE No. "39" FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2024

k) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
1) The company was not requured to spend amount as CSR expenses during the FY 23-
24.
11) However, the company has incurred an amount of Rs.42.67 Lacs as CSR expenditure
during FY 23-24.

| For the year

Particulars ended
31.03.2024

Rs. In Lacs

1) Sardar Patel Uchchatar Madhyamik Vidhyalaya Rewa

31
2) Jaypee Sewa Sansthan (for promoting education) 11
3) Water Coolers provided to Atal Residential School {Govt. Scheol), ]
Naurwa, Bilhaur, UP.
| Total 43

1) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:
The company has not dealt with crypto/virtual currency.

5) Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever found necessary to
make them confirm to the current year classification.

6) All figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupce 1n Lacs.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies &

Notes to the Financial

Statements "1" to "39"

As per our report of even date attached to the
Balance Sheet

For Sharma vats &Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.031486N

(Manoj Kumar Vats) _ (Manoj Gaur)
Partner Chairman

M. No. 527922 /Q/ DIN: 96003430
W

{
]
J

: lf.

Place: New Delhi {Ritu Gupta) ghand Sharma) A{ofi urr
Dated : 27t April 2024 Company Secretary Jt. Pre \ident & CFO Jt-MD & CEO

ACS - 20334 DIN: 00112520



